
1 

 

Visit us at www.hamden.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

May 13, 2015 

MINUTES:  THE INLAND WETLANDS COMMISSION, Town of Hamden, held a Regular Meeting on 
Wednesday, May 6, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. in the Legislative Council Chambers, Memorial Town Hall, 2372 Whitney Avenue, 

Hamden, CT with the following items will be reviewed:  

 
Commissioners in attendance:      Nancy Rosenbaum, Chairperson 

  Joan Lakin 
         Kirk Shadle, arrived at 7:12p.m 

 Dan Liston 

 Stephanie Wilson 
 Kirsten Jensen 

 Mike Milazzo 

 Mike Stone    
    

   

Staff in attendance: Dan Kops, Assistant Town Planner  

Tim Lee, Assistant Town Attorney  
 Tom Vocelli, IW Enforcement Officer                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 Stacy Shellard, Commission Clerk 

 Genevieve Bertolini, Stenographer 

 
Ms. Rosenbaum called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Ms. Lakin called the roll and there was a quorum.  Ms. 

Rosenbaum introduced the Commission and Staff.      

    
I.  Regular Meeting: 

            

     New Applications: 

    
  a.   15-1209     1021 Benham Street-house addition & expansion (garage, bedroom, kitchen)  

         John M Bunton and Linda Oechsle, Applicants      

 

Mr. John Bunton, owner, addressed the Commission and reviewed the request for an addition.  He stated that the 
original house was a farmhouse built in 1850.  A great room was built onto the house in 1992 and a two car detached 

garage was built in 1970.  The garage is in poor condition and for safety reasons it must be razed.  He reviewed the 

proposed addition.  He noted that a new driveway will be built on the north side of the property because the location of 
the existing driveway is unsafe.  Mr. Bunton noted that the construction is expected to take approximately six months.   

 

Ms. Rosenbaum explained that this item would be tabled for a site inspection.  
 

Mr. Milazzo made a motion to table this item for a site inspection.  Ms. Lakin seconded the motion.  The motion 

passed unanimously.   
 

 Pending Applications:   



2 

 

Visit us at www.hamden.com 

    
                a.   15-1208    1125 Shepard Avenue-construction of a new salt storage building at Public Works 
        Town of Hamden, Applicant         

 

Mr. Bob Brinton, Town Engineer, addressed the Commission and reviewed the application.  He stated that the existing 

salt shed has deteriorated and needs to be replaced.  It will be replaced with a larger shed with more storage capacity.  
Currently, the existing shed holds 1,000 tons of salt products.  The Town is using more than 3,000 tons of salt a year.  

This past winter, due to its severity it was difficult to obtain salt product.  Currently, when a delivery of salt is received 

it is left outside and then pushed into the shed.  This process leaves salt residue on the pavement and when it rains the 
runoff goes into the stream.  The height and size of the new shed will allow salt to be delivered directly into the shed.  

Mr. Brinton reviewed the wetlands and noted that to protect the wetlands and streams a berm will be constructed to 

meet the existing berm on the site.    
 

Mr. Liston questioned how the salt residue is getting to the stream.  Mr. Brinton explained that the salt is dumped 

outside the shed.  Once the salt is moved into the shed there is residue left on the pavement.  The pavement is not level 

and the salt washes downward toward the stream.    
 

Mr. Dan Kops, Assistant Town Planner, advised the Commission that the plan presented does not show evergreens that 

are being proposed as part of a variance request that will be heard by the ZBA.  Mr. Brinton noted that the Public 
Works Department is requesting a height variance.  The proposed building will not be higher than the existing 

building; however, it will be longer and go farther back on the property.  Mr. Brinton explained that previously a 

variance request for the height of the building had been denied without prejudice by the ZBA and the evergreens are 
being added to screen the building from Shepard Avenue.   

 

Ms. Lakin asked what will happen if the ZBA denies the variance request.  Mr. Brinton stated that if the request is 

denied that repairs will be made to the existing building.  Ms. Lakin would like as a condition of approval that the 
evergreens be planted, regardless of the outcome of the variance request.  Mr. Brinton agreed.   

 

Mr. Milazzo made the motion to approve Application 15-1208 with the following conditions:  1) The proposed trees 

shown on the ZBA Application 15-6567 be planted, regardless of the outcome of the variance request.  2) The 

applicant complies with #5 and #6 of the RWA comments dated March 26, 2015.    

 

Ms. Lakin seconded the motion. Mr. Milazzo, Ms. Lakin, Mr. Stone, Ms. Jensen and Ms. Wilson voted in favor of 

the motion.  Mr. Shadle and Mr. Liston abstained.  Therefore, the motion passed 5-0-2.   
 

II.  Other Business 

 

       1.    Other Business 

            
       Appeal of the de minimis ruling concerning the proposed extension of Augustine Street to Woodin Street 

 

Ms. Rosenbaum reviewed the procedure that will be followed for the appeal of the de minimis ruling.  She explained 

that Mr. Thomas Vocelli, IW Enforcement Officer, will review the de minimis ruling.  Mr. Michael Bilheimer and Ms. 
Toni Taylor, Appellants and Mr. Steven Studer, Attorney, representing the New Haven Housing Authority will also 

address the Commission.   

 
Mr. Scott Bishop, 90 Belden Road, addressed the Commission and stated that he is an appellant and will be presenting 

for the three appellants.  

 
Mr. Tim Lee, Assistant Town Attorney, advised the Commission that there are three appeals and they will be 

considered at the same time.    

 



3 

 

Visit us at www.hamden.com 

Mr. Tom Vocelli, IW Enforcement Officer, addressed the Commission and made a statement (in file) regarding the 

request for a de minimis and the site inspection that followed.  Mr. Vocelli and Ms. Lakin concluded that the proposed 
tree removal and road connection would have minimal impact on Belden Brook.  

 

Mr. Milazzo asked what the de minimis findings were.  Ms. Rosenbaum stated that the findings are included the 

Commissioners packets.   
 

Mr. Tim Lee, Assistant Town Attorney, explained that the Inland Wetlands de minimis finding is dated March 31, 2015.  

Ms. Rosenbaum stated that the Town Engineer’s report is dated March 5, 2015.   
 

Mr. Bishop addressed the Commission and read a statement (in file) and submitted 4 pictures.  He also noted that he 

spoke with a gentleman from CT Wildlife Management and was told that even though this is a Hamden wetlands 
hearing, everyone should be concerned regionally about the wetlands because it affects more than Hamden residents.  

 

Mr. Bishop reviewed and discussed the four pictures submitted to the Commission.    

 
Mr. Vocelli asked Mr. Bishop if the catch basin that said was not functioning properly is located in New Haven.  Mr. 

Bishop replied yes.   

 
Ms. Rosenbaum referred to Picture 3 and asked if that was taken while standing on the bridge looking into Hamden.  

Mr. Bishop replied yes.   

 
The Commission further discussed the pictures and area of construction with Mr. Bishop.  Mr. Bishop stated that the 

bridge over Belden Brook is in poor condition.  He offered to send additional pictures to the Commissioners and was 

advised by the clerk that he would need to submit them through the Planning Office.   

 
Mr. Bishop explained that when there is a heavy rain the water has run over the bridge.  His back yard has had up to 8 

feet of water and he has seen 15 inches of water over Belden Road.  Mr. Bishop stated that his house is located in the 

center of the lowest point of the road.  He noted that he does not have an environmental or engineering background.  
Mr. Bishop stated that he has called the DEEP and the EPA to question if there is water sampling data and was told that 

the monitoring stations in the area are not working,  Mr. Bishop feels that it is important that the stations be working to 

stay in compliance.  He checked with the Town Engineer and was given water sampling data, but Mr. Bishop stated he 

has not reviewed it as of yet.   
 

Mr. Kops stated that he is not aware of anyone from within the Town that does water samples.  Mr. Bishop replied that 

it is done through the Engineering Department.  Mr. Vocelli explained that the DEEP requires that the water quality be 
sampled and had explained to Mr. Bishop that he thought it was done through the Engineering Department.  Mr. 

Bishop said the testing that has been done is from upstream but there is a need to test downstream.  The monitoring 

systems will help to pinpoint any contamination or sedimentation.  Mr. Bishop stated that downstream monitoring is in 
the middle of the new development and there is one just south of the development.  The EPA said they will investigate 

why the stations are not working.  Mr. Bishop stated that he would like S&E controls to be placed in the area of 

Wilmot Road.  He questioned what impacts there will be to the wildlife and vegetation.   

 
Mr. Shadle asked if the Town has records of the flood events that created a need to close the roads.  Mr. Bishop stated 

that he contacted the Police Chief and was advised that they do not send an officer out for every rain event, but do have 

records of when a car was dispatched out to block the area.   Mr. Shadle asked if there are public safety records that 
indicate any investigations as to the cause of the flooding.  Mr. Bishop stated he did not know.  When he purchased his 

home in 2002 he had done research with regards to flooding in the area and found none.   He described the current 

conditions that have begun to take place over the last few years and the condition of his back yard.   
 

Mr. Lee stated that the IWC has the ability to regulate activity that occurs within the borders of the Town of Hamden 

that have an impact on the wetlands and watercourses.  When the City of New Haven submitted the request for a de 

minimis ruling they were proposing activities within the upland review area of wetlands located within the Town.  The 



4 

 

Visit us at www.hamden.com 

request included the removal of several trees and the construction of a road connection.  Based on the activity proposed 

the Wetlands Enforcement Officer determined that the activity would not have an adverse impact on the wetlands.  The 
Commission needs to determine if the IW Officer made the correct determination that the limited activity proposed in 

Hamden will not have any adverse impact on the wetlands or watercourses.  Mr. Lee understands that Mr. Bishop has 

concerns but that they should be addressed with New Haven.  He explained to Mr. Bishop that if he can prove that the 

road cut and the removal of the trees in Hamden will adversely impact the wetlands or watercourses then that should 
have been the basis of the appeal.  Mr. Bishop and Mr. Lee further discussed the work being done and its impact.   

 

Ms. Rosenbaum asked for further comments from the appellants and there was none.   
 

Mr. Steven Studer, Attorney, addressed the Commission and reviewed the de minimis ruling and the onsite inspection 

with Mr. Tom Vocelli, IW Enforcement Officer and Ms. Joan Lakin, Commissioner.  He explained that the work 
proposed is small scope in nature and will be done 10 feet in to the Hamden property line.  The work will be located 

100 feet east of Belden Brook and the associated wetland corridor.  No work is proposed within the wetlands or a 

watercourse.  Mr. Studer stated that the concerns heard with regards to the impact of the development work being done 

in New Haven are outside the jurisdiction of a Hamden de minimis review.  Nothing being proposed in Hamden will 
exacerbate the existing flooding that is occurring in Hamden.  Mr. Studer stated that he is willing to speak with the 

Hamden residents regarding the issues occurring in Hamden.  Mr. Studer disagrees with the comments made by Mr. 

Bishop and feels they are factually and legally wrong.  The intersection at Wilmot Road is a work in progress and 
behind a construction fence.  The activity is outside the upland review area.  Mr. Studer asked for a short break to 

allow him time to review the pictures shown by Mr. Bishop.   

 
Ms. Rosenbaum granted a five minute recess.  

 

Mr. Lee stated that the representative from the New Haven Housing Authority should limit his comments solely to the 

issues in the appeal of the de minimis ruling.  The other non-related wetland issues should not be addressed during the 
meeting.  Mr. Lee stated that the New Haven Housing Authority may address the issues with the public after the 

completion of the meeting.   

 
Mr. Andrew Bevilacqua, Professional Engineer addressed the Commission and reviewed the area within Hamden 

where the work will be done and the site inspection with Mr. Vocelli.  He explained that three small trees will be 

removed and road drainage directed as far out as could be into New Haven.  Mr. Bevilacqua reviewed the Site Grading 

and Drainage Plan (sheets SKC-03 & CG. 101 and the Soil Erosion and Sediment plan (sheet CS.01).   
 

Mr. Liston asked when the work in Hamden will be completed.  Mr. Bevilacqua stated that the utility work will occur 

first and he is waiting for the Town Engineer to sign off on the plan.  The installation of the utilities will take a few 
days to install.  The work to restore the berm will then take place.  The road connection will take place later in the 

summer.   

 
Ms. Rosenbaum asked who should be contacted if the S & E controls do not work.   Mr. Bevilacqua stated that there is 

a site monitor and he will provide the name & telephone number to Mr. Vocelli. Mr. Bevilacqua can also be called.  

 

Mr. Stone asked for an overview of the total project.  Mr. Bevilacqua explained that there will be 106 units over 25 
acres.  Most of the foundations have been completed and they are proceeding with the necessary site work.   

 

Mr. Bishop asked if the de minimis can be amended to require the berm be replaced within a week from when the work 
is completed.   

 

Mr. Bevilacqua explained that a permit with time lines is required and will state the length of time the berm is allowed 
to remain open.  The berm cannot be breached unless there will be no rain within 48 hours of it being opened.  

 

Mr. Milazzo made the motion to uphold the de minimis ruling concerning the proposed extension of Augustine 

Street to Woodin Street and deny the appeals.  Ms. Jensen seconded the motion.  Mr. Milazzo, Ms. Jensen, Mr. 



5 

 

Visit us at www.hamden.com 

Stone, Ms. Lakin, Mr. Shadle and Ms. Wilson voted in favor of the motion.  Mr. Liston abstained.  Therefore, the 

motion passed 6-0-1.   
 

    2.    Notices-of-Violation, Cease & Desist & Restore Orders, Notices-to-Appear   

            

                     a.     N.O.V.  64 Rocky Top Road – clearing of trees & removal of vegetation                          
                     b.    N.O.V.  251 Welton Street – oil spill or discharge                                                                           

                     c.     N.O.V.  Lot 10-Benham Hill Estates (aka 0 Benham Hill Place)  

                      Failure to repair & maintain stormwater detention basin    
 

Mr. Lee updated the Commission on the status of Lot 10-Benham Hill Estates and advised the Commission that he will 

contact the owner with regards to signing the easement agreement.   
 

All Notices-of-Violation remain tabled. 

 

Ms. Rosenbaum reviewed a court appeal that was made by the owners of a parcel on Rocky Top and she noted that the 
appeal was denied.  Mr. Lee reviewed the original application that had been denied by the Commission and noted that 

the court based their decision on the testimony of the experts hired by the neighbors.   

 
Mr. Lee updated the Commission on the appeal pending for Birchwood Court.  Ms. Rosenbaum reviewed the 

applications that had been denied for Birchwood Court.   

 
Mr. Lee explained that when a property is sold, the new owner must submit a request to transfer the IW permit.  He 

asked that the Commission allow the IW Enforcement Officer to sign off on the transfer of the permit to the new 

owner.   

 

Mr. Milazzo made the motion that the IWC give the Wetland Enforcement Officer the ability to make the decision 

on the assignment of the permit to the new property owner within the Town of Hamden.  Ms. Wilson seconded the 

motion and it passed unanimously.   
 

           3.    Review Site Inspection Schedule     

 

Ms. Rosenbaum reviewed site inspection dates with the Commission and Mr. Vocelli.  Mr. Vocelli stated that 1021 
Benham Street was a de minimis request, but upgraded to a full application.  He feels it is important that the 

Commissioners attend the site inspection.  The site inspection for 1021 Benham Street will take place on Thursday, 

May 21, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

          4.    Review of February 4, 2015 Meeting Minutes  

 

Mr. Milazzo made the motion to table this item until the June 3, 2015 meeting.  Mr. Liston seconded the motion.  

The motion passed unanimously. 

    

       5.    Adjournment 

  

 A motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Milazzo and seconded by Mr. Stone.  It passed with no dissenting votes.   

 
The meeting adjourned at 8:43 p.m.   

   

Submitted by:   ______________________________________      
                           Stacy Shellard-Clerk of the Commission                    


